
TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES October 11, 2018 

Scottsdale to review their recent audit. 

Council Member Stanton announced that the PV Arts Board is hosting an Art Opening at Town Hall on 
October 23rd featuring the photography of former Mayor Ed Lowry. 

15. STUDY SESSION CONTINUED 

Mayor Collins recessed the meeting at 6:26 PM and reconvened the Study Session in the Boardroom 

at 6:35 PM 

18-373 Discussion of Major Special Use Permit Amendment - Statement of 
Direction (SUP-18-06). 10555 N Tatum Boulevard - Mountain View 
Medical Center 

Senior Planner Paul Michaud presented a request by Mountain View Medical Center located at 10555 
N Tatum Blvd major Special Use Permit amendment. He said the applicant is proposing a three
phased demolition and construction of all buildings on the property. The use would remain a medical 
office. 

The Council discussed the Statement of Direction including: use, height, setbacks, impact to adjacent 
uses, lot coverage, landscaping, infrastructure and utility improvements, traffic, parking, and circulation, 
and signage. 

The Council requested additional information and modification to the following SOD elements: 

• Impacts related to construction phasing with attention given to minimizing visual clutter, light 
trespass, noise, dust, traffic, and length of construction 

• Location of uses such as urgent care, veterinary practices, and sleep center that operate in the 
evening and early hours should be taken into consideration during site design to minimize the 
impact on neighboring residential properties 

• Building and landscape design elements and lighting that discourages vagrancy and improves 
safety and security 

• Change the title of the "Impact to Adjacent Uses" to "Impact on Nearby Residential Properties" 



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Note: Minutes of Town Council meetings are prepared in accordance with the provisions of Arizona Revised 
Statutes.  These minutes are intended to be an accurate reflection of action taken and direction given by the 
Town Council and are not verbatim transcripts.  Video recordings of the meetings along with staff reports and 
presentations are available online and are on file in the Office of the Town Clerk.  
Persons with disabilities who experience difficulties accessing this information may request accommodation by 
calling 480-948-7411 (voice) or 480-348-1811 (TDD).  
 

TOWN                                                                          
 Of 
    PARADISE VALLEY 
 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
6401 E. LINCOLN DRIVE 

PARADISE VALLEY, ARIZONA 85253 
MINUTES 

Thursday, October 25, 2018 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Collins called to order the Town Council Meeting for Thursday, October 25, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. in 
the Town Hall Boardroom. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT 
Mayor Michael Collins 
Vice Mayor Jerry Bien-Willner  
Council Member Paul Dembow  
Council Member Scott Moore 
Council Member Julie Pace  
Council Member David A. Sherf  
Council Member Mark Stanton  
 
STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 
Interim Town Manager Brian Dalke 
Town Attorney Andrew Miller 
Deputy Town Manager Dawn Marie Buckland 
Town Clerk Duncan Miller 
Police Chief Peter Wingert  
Town Engineer Paul Mood  
Community Development Director Jeremy Knapp 
Public Works Director Brent Skoglund 
Chief Financial Officer Douglas Allen 
Chief Information Officer Steven Brunasso  
Planner George Burton 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Planning Commission Chair Daran Wastchak 
 
2.  STUDY SESSION ITEMS 

 

 18-385 Discussion of Major Special Use Permit Amendment - Statement of  

 Direction (SUP-18-06).  10555 N Tatum Boulevard - Mountain View  

 Medical Center 
  
Senior Planner Paul Michaud presented the edits to the Statement of Direction (SOD) for the Major 
Special Use Permit Amendment for the Mountain View Medical Center as discussed at the October 11 



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES October 25, 2018 
 

 
   
  

study session.  There were no additional edits or Council discussion.   
 
Mr. Michaud said the SOD would be scheduled for a vote on November 15, 2018. 
 
 

 18-402 Visually Significant Corridors Master Plan Discussion #3 

 
Community Development Director Jeremy Knapp presented the edits to the Visually Significant 
Corridors Master Plan based on the Council’s direction at the October 11th study session.  There were 
no additional edits but there was a request for more information on costs to construct and maintain 
median islands on Lincoln Drive.   
 
Mr. Knapp stated the Master Plan would be scheduled for a vote on November 1, 2018. 

 

 18-405 Discussion and Direction Regarding SUP Managerial Amendment  

 Process 
 

Town Attorney Andrew Miller presented a proposal to amend the Special Use Permit (SUP) Managerial 
Amendment process.  He noted that during the September 27, 2018 study session, the Council raised 
a concern that there is not currently a process to appeal SUP Managerial Amendments.  Based on 
those discussions, the Attorney’s Office drafted potential Town Code amendments.  After Council 
discussion, there was consensus to develop an ordinance with the following points: 

1. Managerial decisions are subject to appeal by the Town Council 
2. A minimum of three Council Members are required to start the process to appeal a Town 

Manager-approved amendment.  Upon receipt of at least three written requests for an appeal, 
the Town Manager will schedule the item for consideration on a future Council agenda.  

3. A Council meeting must be held within seven calendar days of the Town Manager’s decision. 
4. The Town Council’s review shall be a two-step process.  First, a majority of the Council must 

vote to decide whether to the Town Manager’s decision meets the criteria for a Managerial 
Amendment. If the Council decides that the criteria have been met, then there shall be no 
further appeal and the Managerial Amendment is final.  If the Council decides that the criteria 
have not be met, the Town Council may deny the Managerial Amendment, in whole or in part, or 
reclassify the application to a different category of Special Use Permit amendment.   

 
There was Council consensus to formally refer this matter to the Planning Commission for further study 
and recommendation. 

 
 

 18-397 2019 Legislative Agenda and Strategy 

 
Deputy Town Manager Dawn Marie Buckland and Doug Cole, Highground Public Affairs Consultants, 
discussed the upcoming legislative session.  They reported on the upcoming election, legislative 
leadership and committee appointments for 2019, and anticipated legislative temperament toward cities 
and towns.  
 
The Council discussed legislative interests and gave direction on edits to the 2019 Legislative Agenda 
document.  The Town would continue to focus its attention on construction sales tax, public 



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES November 15, 2018 
 

 
   
  

 

 
 

 18-420 Consideration of Mountain View Medical Center Major Special Use  

 Permit Amendment - Statement of Direction Located at 10555 N  
 Tatum Boulevard 
 
Senior Planner Paul Michaud presented the revised Mountain View Medical Special Use Permit 
Amendment Statement of Direction.  The Council discussed the Statement of Direction (SOD) on 
October 11 and October 25.  He said Council feedback was incorporated into the final SOD. 
 
There was Council discussion about the hours of operation of the pharmacy, distribution of Class I and 
II narcotics, design security, traffic congestion, and location of the building on the property. 
 
Planning Commission Chair Daran Wastchak addressed the Council.  He stated that the Planning 
Commission discussed and included recommendations on pharmacy hours and distribution of narcotics 
in the Lincoln Plaza Medical Special Use Permit Amendment that may be pertinent for this application.  
 
A motion was made by Council Member Pace, seconded by Council Member Moore, to approve 
the Major Special Use Permit Amendment Statement of Direction for the Mountain View Medical 
Center dated November 15, 2018 with the following amendment: Section 1 USE add the 
following to the end of the paragraph: Address any proposed storage and distribution of 
Schedule I and II drugs including security, facility and environmental design.  Evaluate hours of 
pharmacy being increased from 8 to 6 PM to longer hours. The motion carried by the following 
vote: 
 

 Aye: 6 -  Mayor Collins 
 Vice Mayor Bien-Willner 
 Council Member Dembow 
 Council Member Moore 
 Council Member Pace 
 Council Member Sherf 
 
 Absent: 1 -  Council Member Stanton 
 
  

 18-422 Consideration of Paradise Valley Medical Plaza Intermediate Special  

 Use Permit Amendment Statement of Direction - 5410 N. Scottsdale  
 Road 
 
Planner George Burton presented the Paradise Valley Medical Plaza Special Use Permit Statement of 
Direction.  The Council previously discussed the SOD on October 25.  There were no recommended 
edits or changes to the draft SOD. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
 
 



December 4, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

had a response. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that the letter talks about grading and drainage. 

Paul Mood stated that the applicant is only required to provide storm water 

retention for the affected area. He walked the site a few months ago and 

there might be some challenges for the water to get out to the retention 

basin. This is something that they cannot require. The Commission could 

make this suggestion to have the applicant look at it. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that he will follow the SOD guidance and the 

requirements in the standards. 

Mr. Mood indicated that he did not get any calls regarding this area during 

the last storm events. 

Chairman Wastchak mentioned that the new drop off area looks like an 

improvement and has a covering. 

The applicant stated that they will have a 5 to 6 decibel reduction from the 

new design. He mentioned that they will continue to reach out to the 

neighbors.

Commissioner Campbell commented that he would like to review the 

landscape plan that its screening benefits to the neighbors. 

The applicant stated that they will take a look at the landscape screening. 

There might be a couple additional spots to place more shrubs.  

Chairman Wastchak indicated that they will meet on this again in two 

weeks for the public hearing. 

No Reportable Action

B. 18-427 Discussion of Major Special Use Permit Amendment (SUP-18-12) 

10555 N Tatum Boulevard - Mountain View Medical Center

Paul Michaud, Senior Planner, stated this is a major special use permit 

amendment of the medical center at 10555 N. Tatum Boulevard for a 

phased demolition of all structures and construction of six new medical 

buildings. He summarized some General Plan policies at they would relate 

to this site, such as the encouragement of revitalization for Special Use 

Permit (SUP) properties. The property is triangular in shape and 9.8 acres 

in size. It is adjacent to commercial zoned uses along Tatum Boulevard and 

Shea Boulevard and adjoins residential along the rear yard. It contains a 

total of 95,169 square feet. There are six one story medical office 

buildings. The last SUP amendment was in 2012 for monument signs. The 

Page 13Town of Paradise Valley

http://paradisevalleyaz.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2695


December 4, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

site is designated for SUP-Medical and zoned SUP-Medical. Both streets 

are major rights-of-way and located in Phoenix. They are proposing 

medical uses. There will be no retail or medical marijuana dispensaries on 

site. They are proposing pharmacy, urgent care and veterinarian practices 

with conditions. There is currently a pharmacy on site. He then reviewed the 

three proposed phases of the site. 

The parking will increase from 331 spaces to 410 spaces. They are 

looking for a reduction from the calculation guideline. 22% of the spaces 

will be covered. The covered parking will increase the square footage from 

11,700 to 17,000 square feet. The street landscape areas are not in 

compliance with SUP guidelines. The guidelines call for a landscape width 

of 50 feet and they are proposing a width of 29 feet and 42 feet. Tatum 

Boulevard is a visually significant corridor. The residential landscaped 

buffer area is not in compliance with the SUP guidelines of 40 feet and 

remains at a 25-foot width. Additional landscaping will be added to this 

area. Two proposed double-faced monument signs are being proposed. 

They are eight feet tall and contain 30 square feet each side. There are 

three entrances, but since the two signs are double-sided, they are 

considered two signs each. There are no SUP guidelines regarding tenant 

signs. These are being located adjacent to the suites. Buildings A and F 

will each have a directory sign containing a height of five feet and area of 

22 square feet. Building signs are being proposed on the parapets. There 

are five signs on Shea Boulevard that will be 22 feet high and contain 

two-foot-high letters. Two building signs are proposed on Tatum Boulevard. 

Mr. Michaud read the Statement of Direction (SOD) points. 

Chairman Wastchak indicated that depending what Council does on the 

Lincoln Medical application may affect this location as well. When Council 

discussed Lincoln Medical, he asked if they were concerned with Schedule 

I and II drugs on the property or were they worried about the pharmacy 

making these drugs available to people outside of the facility. 

Mr. Michaud stated that some of the Council members appeared to be 

concerned with the Scheduled I and II drugs being on the property because 

they could entice someone to break into the property. The SUP provisions 

have specific hours for pharmacies. The applicant proposed something 

outside of these hours. The Council wanted further explanation from the 

Lincoln Medical applicant why the hours were different from those in the 

code. 

Chairman Wastchak asked if the pharmacy would serve people outside of 

the facility. 

Page 14Town of Paradise Valley



December 4, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

The applicant commented that the existing pharmacy serves people on and 

off the property. This pharmacy does not have Schedule I or II drugs. Mr. 

Michaud noted that the existing stipulations do not prohibit these drugs.  

Commissioner Campbell suggested that they not allow animal boarding in 

conjunction with veterinary clinics. 

Mr. Michaud stated that the veterinary clinic may be better located away 

from the adjoining residential. 

Mr. Michaud commented that the applicant is proposing both one and 

two-story buildings with a maximum height of 21 feet for the one story and 

30 feet for the two-story buildings. The SOD allows the Commission to 

consider allowing Building D and C up to 36 feet tall. 

Chairman Wastchak indicated that the Council recommended that the site 

not have below grade buildings due to loitering and other concerns. 

The applicant stated that they are happy to accommodate this request.  

Commissioner Campbell asked it the 36 feet will include mechanical 

equipment. 

The applicant stated that they could do this with a height of 35 feet, 

including the mechanical equipment.  

Chairman Wastchak recommended that they go ahead and move forward 

with this recommendation.

Mr. Michaud stated that the proposed setbacks for the buildings meet the 

SUP guidelines of 40 feet from public streets and 60 feet from residential 

properties.  A couple parking canopies are only setback 50 feet. The 

adjacent properties are zoned R-18A and located southeast and 

commercial uses are located along Tatum Boulevard and Shea Boulevard 

to the west and north. The Commission should focus on mitigating impacts 

of noise above ambient levels. Impacts may include noise, lighting, smells, 

and related effects. The Commission may consider greater setbacks, 

building heights and landscaping. He further added items of concern 

including outdoor employee areas, services and maintenance, trash 

collection, mechanical equipment, phasing of the project and consideration 

of design requirements for uses that are open in the early morning or 

evening hours. 

Commissioner Lewis asked if there have been any traffic studies 

completed. 

Page 15Town of Paradise Valley



December 4, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Mr. Michaud stated that no changes are occurring to entrances. A traffic 

study analysis is in the packet. 

Commissioner Wainwright commented that he used to live behind this 

medical plaza and the access is not ideal but you learn to live with it. 

Mr. Michaud stated that the applicant has done some voluntary outreach. 

There has been one neighbor who expressed concerns regarding 

access/traffic. 

Mr. Michaud stated that the Commission has until March 5, 2018 to make 

their Council recommendation, with a preference that the hearing take 

place on February 5, 2019. He listed the proposed meeting schedule for 

work sessions and the public hearing dates. 

Commissioner Campbell asked how long it will take to make the change 

for the architectural buildings. 

Mr. Michaud stated that the December 18, 2018 packet will go out next 

Wednesday. 

The applicant stated that they could have something ready by Wednesday. 

Commissioner Campbell suggested pulling the height back from the edge 

of the building to break up the massing. 

Chairman Wastchak suggested that they work on SOD Sections 1, 3, 4 

and 5 for the next work session meeting. He believes they can get this 

done by February. 

No Reportable Action

C. 18-475 Discussion of Major Special Use Permit Amendment (SUP-18-05)

7101 E Lincoln Drive - Smoke Tree Resort Study Session #2

Indexes: Smoketree Resort

Mr. Knapp provided an overview of the application. The property is 5.33 

acres located at the intersection of Lincoln Drive and Quail Run Road. It 

has been in operation since 1954, contains 32 rooms but only 23 rooms 

are in service. The restaurant is not in use. The General Plan designates 

the site as SUP-Resort and it is within the Lincoln Drive South 

Development Area. The site is zoned SUP-Resort. The applicant is 

requesting 150 traditional hotel guest rooms, 30 resort residential units of 

approximately 1,250 square feet with lock-off features which will be 

available for rent through the resort. There will be a restaurant and 

bar/lounge area and an assortment of accessory uses. Indoor and outdoor 

Page 16Town of Paradise Valley

http://paradisevalleyaz.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2743


December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Commissioner Covington stated that they need to address this point. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that he is concerned about the open space 

criteria and encroachments into the site triangle on corners. He wants them 

to stay out of the viewsheds and place height in the center of the property. 

He is okay with height above 36 feet if it is in the center of the property. 

Commissioner Georgelos commented that she agrees with his points on 

viewsheds. She would like to see information on why they need to go 

above 36 feet. 

Commissioner Wainwright stated that he needs a compelling reason to go 

above 36 feet. He wants to see some undulation and is okay with some 

features going above 36 feet. People do need a place to take a break. 

Commissioner Lewis stated he does not want the over development of the 

site to over power the property. He feels that less is more. 

No Reportable Action

B. 18-490 Discussion of Major Special Use Permit Amendment (SUP-18-12) 

10555 N Tatum Boulevard - Mountain View Medical Center

Chairman Wastchak introduced the item. He indicated that residents 

Marjorie Schumacher and Robert Kramer would like to speak and 

suggested that they speak prior to staff’s report. 

Marjorie Schumacher stated that she is a resident of the Firebrand Ranch 

neighborhood. She stated that the neighborhood was not fully notified of 

this project. She indicated that she will read a letter from JoAnn Ceimo. 

She then read the letter which indicated that due to out-of-state family 

obligations, she could not be in attendance tonight. Firebrand Ranch is 

under siege by developers. The investment in their homes and peace and 

quiet is being threatened. The development proposal is a travesty. She 

moved to the area for the lifestyle. There will be noise pollution from 

construction, increased traffic congestion and added air pollution. She 

asked if there are health mitigations that have been considered. 

Construction raises dust and impacts health. There are children and 

retirees within the development that will be at increased risk of the 

construction. There will be light and traffic pollution in the neighborhood. 

There will be a decrease in parking spaces. 

Ms. Schumacher commented that she has several letters that she will leave 

with Mr. Michaud. 

Robert Kramer provided an anonymous letter to the Planning Commission 

Page 11Town of Paradise Valley

http://paradisevalleyaz.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2758


December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

and suggested that they include these in the minutes. The letter sounds the 

alarm that something drastic is going to happen on the corner. He 

referenced the PV Independent newspaper with an invitation to talk about 

the Ritz Carlton. The neighborhood does not know what is going on. He 

does not know if he is for or against the project. They will protest until they 

find out. He hopes the stipulations will help with this project. 

Chairman Wastchak indicated that they wanted to have the neighbors 

speak and hear their information. The Town wants to hear from the citizens. 

Mr. Michaud explained that there are four levels of amendments to Special 

Use Permit (SUP) amendments. This project is the highest level because 

they are demolishing the site and rebuilding. This requires them to first go 

to the Town Council to receive a Statement of Direction (SOD). Those 

meetings are not publicly noticed but posted on the Town website agenda. 

He stated staff encourages the applicants to do public outreach early. The 

applicant has been trying to reach out. The Town Council holds two work 

study sessions and then acts on the SOD at their third meeting. The 

Planning Commission will then discuss the project at multiple work study 

sessions. A neighborhood meeting will be required prior to the Planning 

Commission recommendation going back to the Town Council. This will 

happen in the second or third week of January. Code requires notice to be 

sent ten days prior to the neighborhood meeting. The public hearing will 

require 15 days prior notice. Once it goes to the Town Council there will be 

more work-study sessions and a public hearing. A notice will go out to the 

neighborhood again. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that this item will be on their agenda moving 

forward. He asked them to stay connected to the project. Comments are 

always taken in writing. 

Commissioner Anton suggested that they watch it online if they cannot 

make it to the meeting. 

Commissioner Wainwright commented that the Planning Commission 

does not make the final decision. It is good to have old sites to be 

redeveloped. The applicant hired Technical Solutions to do outreach for the 

project.  

Mr. Michaud stated that the applicant is requesting to demolish and 

redevelop the site into three phases. Six one-story buildings will be 

replaced with four new one-story and two two-story buildings. More parking 

will be added and existing parking will be replaced with new canopies. 

They will increase the total lot coverage from 22.3% to 25%. He then 

reviewed the sequence of the three phases. He continued that the original 

plan proposed a garden level, but the Town Council was concerned with 

Page 12Town of Paradise Valley



December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

the potential for loitering. They are requesting a possible height of up to 36 

feet from grade for the two buildings on the corner. 

Chairman Wastchak clarified that the two center buildings in phase three 

are losing the garden level and will pop up to 36 feet. 

 

Mr. Michaud indicated that today they will discuss the use of the property, 

setbacks, impacts on nearby residential properties and lot coverage. They 

will postpone discussion on Schedule I and II drugs and the pharmacy 

hours. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that he likes staff’s comparisons between what 

is being proposed and what is existing. He requested that anything that is 

changed between meetings have the text noted in red or underlined. 

Mr. Michaud commented that there was no new information but that he will 

do this for future meetings. The existing SUP uses require the property to 

be used for medical clinics only and if there are changes that they come 

back for approvals. He reviewed the pharmacy detail of the existing SUP. 

The narrative does not propose retail or medical marijuana dispensaries. 

There will be a pharmacy, urgent care and veterinary care with conditions. 

The applicant proposed a list of uses that will be allowed in all of their 

buildings. Under buildings A and F they are proposing ambulatory and 

outpatient surgery centers with hours ranging from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

Monday through Saturday. There will be a maximum of 48 hours patient 

stays. The urgent care center will operate from 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

seven days per week. No emergency vehicles are permitted. Patients will 

transport themselves to and from the center. The overall hours of operation 

for the entire facility are not specified. He compared Lincoln and Paradise 

Valley Medical Centers hours and suggested that this may provide 

guidance. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that there should be an overarching time frame. 

He suggested that they consider using the Paradise Valley Medical hours 

of 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. due to the adjacency of residential uses. 

Mr. Michaud stated that the applicant requests allowance of sleep centers 

in all buildings. There are no guidelines for sleep centers. The Planning 

Commission could set stipulations on the use or allow it outright. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that he does not see one particular building 

that may be more suitable for this use than the others. 

Commissioner Anton indicated that someone may come late at night to 

visit. 

Page 13Town of Paradise Valley



December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Chairman Wastchak responded that the patients will be sleeping. 

Commissioner Anton suggested that the driveway be shut down behind the 

homes at night. They could place an arm to control traffic. It would still allow 

people to come in off of Tatum Boulevard. 

Commissioner Georgelos stated that she agrees with this suggestion. 

Mr. Knapp suggested that they check with the fire department to see if this 

would create problems. 

Commissioner Covington asked what the sleep center guidelines were for 

Paradise Valley Medical. 

Commissioner Anton responded that they were restricted from Monday to 

Friday. 

Mr. Michaud stated that this was for surgical recovery. 

Commissioner Georgelos stated that they could segregate this use to the 

corner and limit it on weekends. She wants the roadway closed off at night. 

Commissioner Anton suggested that the garbage be located internally in 

the complex and not on the roadway adjacent to the homes. 

Chairman Wastchak reiterated that the sleep center will need to be limited 

to certain buildings. 

Mr. Michaud explained the veterinary use will be for non-emergencies only. 

They can limit hours, types of animals, boarding, building locations, drop off 

area and limit parking location after hours. 

Chairman Wastchak agreed that they should limit hours. He asked the 

applicant to take a look at this and to think which building this use should 

be allowed. 

Commissioner Lewis indicated that this property is a major entrance into 

the Town. He listed several concerns regarding the veterinary use. The 

Planning Commission should sleep on this and think about what is the 

highest and best use of the property in the context of Paradise Valley. 

Chairman Wastchak suggested that he meet with the applicant and share 

his concerns.

Page 14Town of Paradise Valley



December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Mr. Michaud commented that the applicant is requesting urgent care from 

6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. from Monday through Saturday. No emergency 

vehicles will be permitted. This use is proposed for building A and F only. 

Chairman Wastchak indicated that there should only be one urgent care on 

the property. 

Commissioner Wainwright stated that he would prefer that there be no 

urgent care as they are trying to construct a Class A medical complex. 

Chairman Wastchak invited the applicant to speak regarding the proposed 

uses. 

John Bozzo, with the ownership group and John Cantrell, Architect 

introduced themselves. 

Mr. Bozzo stated that it is unlikely they will have veterinary care and he is 

fine if they eliminate this use. They currently do not have urgent care. They 

may have a lot of interest in urgent care. They are okay with limitation to 

only one facility, hours of operation and location.  

Commissioner Anton asked where the nearest urgent care is located. 

Mr. Cantrell noted that there is one across the street. He mentioned that 

there is not a veterinary clinic nearby and this may be a good service for 

the adjacent neighborhood. 

Commissioner Wainwright stated that boarding should not be allowed. 

Mr. Bozzo stated that it would only be a day time use. 

Commissioner Anton commented that he would like to know where both 

uses will be located. 

Commissioner Covington asked where the pharmacy is located on the 

property. 

Mr. Michaud indicated that it is located in the building by the main entrance 

off Tatum Boulevard. 

Mr. Bozzo stated that they will move the current pharmacy into building F. 

Commissioner Lewis asked if there will be any extended care. 

Mr. Cantrell responded that there will be none. 

Page 15Town of Paradise Valley



December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Commissioner Lewis encouraged them to think outside of the box and to 

stay away from conventional medical complexes. 

Commissioner Georgelos commented that they need to be creative and 

thoughtful. 

Commissioner Covington asked if the renderings are indicative of the 

actual design. He does not want to see block buildings. 

Mr. Cantrell commented that they will have more details in the future. 

Chairman Wastchak asked why they need the eight-foot perimeter walls. 

Mr. Cantrell indicated that this is a typo and it should say three feet. 

Mr. Michaud stated that a surgery center is proposed. The hours of 

operation are from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday. The 

maximum patient stay would be 48 hours. No emergency vehicles where 

be permitted. Lincoln Medical has similar stipulations. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that they should have the stipulations match up 

with similar projects. There should be no overnight stays on Saturday and 

Sunday. 

Commissioner Anton asked if this will create conflicts making the 

stipulation overly restrictive. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that they should wait for comments from the 

neighbors to see how they feel about it. 

Commissioner Georgelos noted that surgery centers are very broad and 

usually patients do not stay overnight. 

Chairman Wastchak asked what are the plans for drop off areas. 

Mr. Michaud noted the locations of these areas. There are three within the 

proposed project. 

Commissioner Wainwright indicated that they should give some thought to 

where an Uber could pick someone up. 

Chairman Wastchak suggested that they place the drop-offs internally or 

near the major streets. 

Page 16Town of Paradise Valley



December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Mr. Michaud noted that the applicant is requesting a pharmacy with a 

maximum square footage of 2,500 with hours from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

There will be no marijuana dispensary or retail. The SOD requests an 

explanation for going outside of the hours from 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., 

Monday through Saturday. They will need to discuss allowances and 

security measures for schedule I and II drugs. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that the pharmacy for Lincoln Plaza Medical 

Center is for onsite patients only. He asked if this pharmacy is open for all 

people. 

The applicant indicated that currently the pharmacy allows for both onsite 

and offsite people. It also acts as an apothecary. He believes there will be 

issues for schedule I and II drugs if anyone can walk off the street. If that is 

the way it is now and there are no problems then maybe they no need to be 

restricted. He asked the applicant to figure out the hours. 

Mr. Michaud commented that they will need to have more details added to 

the narrative. He continued with setbacks and indicated that the SUP 

guidelines call for 40-foot setbacks from public streets and 60 feet from 

residential properties. The proposed plan does meet these setbacks. Two 

of the proposed parking structures are only 50 feet from the adjoining 

residential lot lines. The Planning Commission could consider an 

increased setback for the canopies, their height and design and the 

orientation near residential uses. 

He reviewed SOD elements regarding impact on nearby residential uses. 

The Planning Commission should consider impact from lighting, noise and 

smells through setbacks, building heights, location of uses, landscaping 

material and other related design aspects. The Council highlighted areas 

of particular concern, including outdoor employee and service areas, 

understanding the impacts related to construction phasing and design 

requirements for uses that are open in the early morning or evening hours. 

Neighbors have commented on noise and traffic. They are concerned with 

structures over one-story. The shared property wall is only five feet in 

height. The code allows by right residential to have eight-foot tall walls 

adjoining an SUP site. Employee areas have not been identified. 

Commissioner Georgelos stated that she would like to know where 

employee areas are on the property. She wants to hear input from the 

neighbors on what they want done with the adjoining walls. 

Commissioner Wainwright indicated that he believes the walls were put up 

by the medical building. The complex took care of its maintenance. 

Page 17Town of Paradise Valley



December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Commissioner Anton asked if there is a possibility to not locate the trash 

enclosures on the road behind the neighbors. 

The applicant stated that they could place it on the other side of the road to 

get them a little further from residential. The neighbors are not bothered by 

the noise now, and it will decrease with the new proposal. 

Commissioner Georgelos asked what they plan to do with hazardous 

waste material. 

The applicant indicated that they deal with it in each tenant space. 

Commissioner Lewis asked how the HVAC condensers will be handled. 

The applicant stated that the condensers will be on the roof and screened. 

Commissioner Lewis mentioned that he would prefer ground mounted 

units. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that ground mounted units would be more 

impactful. The roof mounted units will be screened behind parapets. 

Mr. Michaud stated that the applicant provided limited information in their 

narrative regarding construction phasing. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that Maricopa County is very strict in regards to 

dust. They can levy tens of thousands of dollars in fines. He asked if they 

are moving tenants in and out into new buildings and can they complete the 

project in two phases instead of three phases. 

The applicant indicated that they are trying to accommodate as many 

existing tenants as possible. The do have existing leases in place that have 

to be honored. They are ready with Phase 1 but Phases 2 and 3 are not 

ready. They are trying to roll one phase into the next. He then reviewed the 

time frames of each of the phases. 

Commissioner Georgelos suggested that they look at the leases and see if 

they can reduce the phases to two phases. 

The applicant stated that they have looked at the leases and are locked in. 

Mr. Michaud stated that property complies with the SUP guideline for lot 

coverage. 

Page 18Town of Paradise Valley



December 18, 2018Planning Commission Minutes - Final

He then reviewed a list of future discussion points including building 

heights, viewsheds, landscaping, traffic, parking, circulation, infrastructure, 

utilities, architectural design, signage, and SUP stipulations. 

Commissioner Anton stated that he is against illuminated signs. He is 

concerned with building signs. 

Commissioner Wainwright indicated that a Class A medical facility needs 

to have appropriate signage. 

Commissioner Georgelos mentioned that she does not want glaring signs. 

Chairman Wastchak commented that the Commission is concerned mainly 

with building signs.  

Commissioner Anton stated that he only wants to see small signage on the 

buildings. 

Chairman Wastchak commented that he wants to see where the signs will 

be located on each building and a rendering from Tatum Boulevard and 

Shea Boulevard on how the signs will look. 

Mr. Michaud reviewed the next meeting dates for work study sessions and 

the public hearing. 

No Reportable Action

C. 18-492 Discussion of a Minor Special Use Permit Amendment (SUP 18-15)

Ritz-Carlton Area A1 - North East Corner of Mockingbird Lane and Lincoln 

Drive 

6651 N. Palmeraie Blvd. (Assessor’s Parcel Number 174-58-355)

Indexes: Ritz Carlton Paradise Valley

Mr. Burton reviewed the application and goals for the Planning 

Commission’s review. The applicant is seeking to modify Area A1 

regarding heights of five buildings to accommodate roof articulation and 

elevator overruns. He noted the location of the site on a vicinity map. There 

are seven buildings in area A1 and this request will affect five of the 

buildings: A, B, C, D and F. This modification will add between 3.5 feet and 

5 feet of extra height. The following changes are proposed: 

· Building A: From 28’0” in height to 32’-8” - Setback of 700 feet from 

Lincoln Drive. 

Mr. Knapp commented that the pool adjacent to Building A is sunken. The 

front of the building appears to be 17 feet in height and the pool side has a 

Page 19Town of Paradise Valley

http://paradisevalleyaz.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2760


January 9, 2019Planning Commission Minutes - Final

No Reportable Action

A. 19-002 Discussion of Major Special Use Permit Amendment (SUP-18-12) 

10555 N Tatum Boulevard - Mountain View Medical Center

Chairman Wastchak stated they would first hear from Paul Michaud after 

which they will allow for questions from the Planning Commission followed 

by three five-minute timed presentations for public comments.   

Commissioner Covington asked if everyone is aware that this item has 

been pulled from the agenda. 

Chairman Wastchak stated everyone is aware.

Mr. Michaud stated that the applicant has requested to move this item to 

the next meeting on January 22, 2019. The request is to demolish the six 

existing buildings and replace them with new buildings.  The topics they 

were going to discuss tonight were in regard to parking, traffic circulation, 

landscaping, and infrastructure. Those items will carry over to the next 

meeting. 

Chairman Wastchak asked for him to go over the timeline if he is prepared 

to do so. 

Mr. Michaud stated that because they are requesting to demolish a 

structure there are different levels of amendments the highest being a 

major amendment. A major amendment requires that they go through both 

a Planning Commission and Town Council review. Part of that is a 

Statement of Direction (SOD) which Council gives to the Planning 

Commission. In the SOD the Council gives a target date of when they 

would like to have a recommendation back. In this case the date is no later 

than March 5, 2019, which they believe is when the hearing will be on this 

item. There is always the opportunity for the Commission to ask the Council 

for more time if it is needed. Once it is out of the Commission, Council will 

have separate work sessions and then a public hearing.

Mr. Michaud clarified that the public gets notice at three different stages. 

First, the citizen review meeting which must be ten days prior to the 

Commission recommendation. The applicant believed that would be 

around the middle or end of January, but that probably will shift to a later 

time. 

Commissioner Georgelos asked how they will be notified.  

Mr. Michaud responded that everyone within 1,500 feet of the site will get a 

notification in the mail. He added that he also sends the list out to people 

Page 11Town of Paradise Valley

http://paradisevalleyaz.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2771


January 9, 2019Planning Commission Minutes - Final

who he has emails. They can also sign up on the online system to get 

notice of all the agendas and not just this particular one. 

Mr. Michaud continued stating that the citizen review is for the applicant 

and the citizens, staff is not there, but a report is sent back to them. They 

will get notice again when the Commission makes a recommendation and 

again when Council makes a decision. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that when they had their last discussion they 

clarified that there would be opportunities for the neighbors and the 

community to really talk, but last time and tonight they have allowed for them 

to have al little extra opportunity. He then asked if the Commission had any 

questions for staff. 

Commissioner Anton asked if anything they talked about at the last 

meeting has been addressed by the applicant.  

Mr. Michaud replied that the applicant heard the comments and is working 

to revise the application. 

Chairman Wastchak commented that they had a lot of good feedback last 

time and they appreciate the applicant working to address some of those 

things. He then stated they would now hear comments from Paul Cooter. 

Paul Couture shared that today at around 4:20 pm the back up to turn left 

onto Shea Boulevard was almost all the way up to Onyx Road, which 

blocked him from being able to make a left turn onto Shea Boulevard. He 

recommends that those at the meeting today drive that intersection at that 

time to see how much traffic there is on this street. During this same 

experience he also looked over at the medical center and saw that there 

were plenty of cars there. He is concerned that if they are doubling the size 

than there will be that much more traffic. He clarified that he is not against 

remodeling, but he is against not being able to get out of his neighborhood. 

Some people would suggest for him to move, but the location is so close to 

many places that he likes and enjoys. He does not want to lose the 

neighborhood feeling they have there. 

Joanne Ciemo stated that her letter was read last month at the 

Commission meeting. She clarified that they are a neighborhood and not a 

buffer zone. She then explained what a neighborhood is to her. The idea of 

if you build it, it will come is not something that always works in life, for 

example, she drives to Mesa to see her cardiologist. Planners and 

developers who want to anticipate their needs should ask them their needs. 

She then stated some of the things she would like to see including a police 

station, city offices, a library, a historical center, or a park. She then added 

Page 12Town of Paradise Valley



January 9, 2019Planning Commission Minutes - Final

that if something is dated it does not need to be torn down it needs to be 

updated. She feels they need to think outside the box and look at their 

priorities. She then asked what is in this for us and what is in this for you. 

Kenneth Goldstein shared a story from 1977 about the Egyptian President 

visiting Israel for the beginning of a peace initiative. He stated he shared 

this because he is uncomfortable with a comment he read in the 

newspaper where someone said it is unrealistic to think nothing will 

happen. He then stated he thought the purpose of the hearings were to see 

if things were to be done. He then gave some background on himself 

including that he is a psychologist and is experienced helping introduce 

medical programs into the community. He has serious concerns about the 

expansion of the medical center. His major concern is traffic. He then 

shared some of the problems they are already experiencing with traffic in 

that area which he anticipates becoming worse with the expansion of the 

medical center.  He also feels parking is a problem, specifically on street 

parking since there are no sidewalks which creates a safety hazard for 

pedestrians. He also feels they do not need any other additional service 

there. He then asked them not to destroy the community for him and his 

neighbors. 

Chairman Wastchak thanked all the speakers. He then asked Mr. Michaud 

when the next opportunity would be for the members of the community to 

share their thoughts on this would be.  

Mr. Michaud responded under normal circumstances it would be March 5, 

2019 but before that they will have the citizen review meeting with the 

applicant. They will get a notice for both of those meetings. 

Mr. Michaud stated the next meeting would be January 22, 2019 which is a 

work session. 

Commissioner Anton commented that if they are ever in doubt of when 

meetings are they can go to the Town website. If they miss the meeting, 

they can also catch up on what happened from the available videos. 

Commissioner Campbell stated that on page one of the executive 

summary it states there will be 64 additional trips at the am peak hour and 

107 additional trips at the peak pm hour.  He then asked if anyone knew 

how many cars per hour are on Tatum Boulevard and Shea Boulevard. 

Mr. Mood stated if you give him a minute he could let them know. 

Chairman Wastchak stated that at any time people can send thoughts and 

comments to Mr. Michaud to be shared with the Commission. 

Page 13Town of Paradise Valley



January 9, 2019Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Mr. Vogel stated they are also seeing a lot of time that people are making 

U-turns right at Beryl Avenue. He added that the congestion there is bad, 

and they are worried it will get worse throughout the entire day.  

A resident asked if they are the right people to talk to about including 

language for what the applicant wants to do about no marijuana 

dispensaries.  

Chairman Wastchak stated they are, and they will review that for their final 

stipulations and their recommendation to Council. He added that if she has 

thoughts she wants to share to send them to Mr. Michaud. 

Mr. Michaud clarified they will put that in the stipulations, but the applicant 

has already stated that there would not be marijuana dispensaries.

Another resident stated there will still be pharmacies and urgent care they 

are looking for. Shen then asked if they are looking for a three and half to 

five-year build time. 

Mr. Michaud responded that they have been asked to shorten the build 

time. 

Another resident asked if the meeting they will get notification of will be 

directly with the applicant and what the meeting will look like. 

Mr. Michaud stated normally what they will do is have a presentation which 

goes over what they are doing and then they will give neighbors an 

opportunity to comment and speak as well. They are also required to give 

staff a report of who was there and a summary of the meeting.

Chairman Wastchak commented that they will find a location to host it. 

Mr. Michaud replied that he believes they were thinking of holding it in the 

Town Hall Community Room. 

Mr. Mood stated he could only find the a.m. and p.m. peak and not the full 

24 hours.   

Chairman Wastchak commented that they will have to do a little more 

digging to get the answer to Commissioner Campbell's question. 

Chairman Wastchak stated they will have more detail on that for their 

meeting on January 22, 2019. He thanked all who came and participated 

and asked them to continue to come and share their thoughts. 

Page 14Town of Paradise Valley



January 9, 2019Planning Commission Minutes - Final

Commissioner Covington pointed out on the website they have access to 

all the plans and the narrative. 

Chairman Wastchak thanked everyone for coming and let them know they 

are welcome to stay. 

No Reportable Action

6.  ACTION ITEMS

None

7.  CONSENT AGENDA

A. 18-497 Approval of December 4, 2018 Planning Commission Minutes

A motion was made by Commissioner Georgelos, seconded by Commissioner 

Anton, to approve the December 4, 2018 minutes with one edit from 

Commissioner Campbell on Page 13 to modify add the word "that" related to the 

screening benefits. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Commissioner Wastchak, Commissioner Anton, Commissioner Campbell, 

Commissioner Covington, Commissioner Georgelos, Commissioner Lewis and 

Commissioner Wainwright

7 - 

B. 19-004 Approval of December 18, 2018 Planning Commission Minutes

A motion was made by Commissioner Georgelos, seconded by Commissioner 

Covington, to approve the December 18, 2018 minutes. Commissioner Campbell 

asked staff to clarify the 30-foot radius statement on Page 8 as to whether or not 

this refers to curb radius or the sight triangle. The motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Commissioner Wastchak, Commissioner Anton, Commissioner Campbell, 

Commissioner Covington, Commissioner Georgelos, Commissioner Lewis and 

Commissioner Wainwright

7 - 

8.  STAFF REPORTS

Mr. Knapp stated the Town Manger that was selected withdrew and so they 

will be starting over with the process. Brian Dalke will continue as the 

Interim Town Manager. 

Mr. Knapp stated they might consider starting the February 5, 2019 

meeting an hour or two early since he believes it will be a long meeting. 

They do not have to make a decision on that tonight since they can discuss 

it further at their next meeting. 

Commissioner Campbell stated that he will have to phone in on that 

meeting as well, but he could call in at either time. 

Page 15Town of Paradise Valley

http://paradisevalleyaz.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2765
http://paradisevalleyaz.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2773






















TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES February 14, 2019 
 

 
   
  

Commission’s hearing.  In response, the applicant requested a continuance in order to meet with 
neighbors to discuss their concerns. 
 
Mayor Bien-Willner opened the public hearing. 
 
The following Paradise Valley residents spoke in opposition to the application citing concerns about 
increased noise, traffic, and proximity of the building and parking to the adjoining residences: Alita, 
Patrick Ford, Kathy Sparks, Marty Applebaum, Scott Kiburz, Sarah Kiburz, Dan Costello, Logan 
Costello, and Dylan Costello.  Melissa Costello submitted a statement in opposition to the application 
but did not speak.   
 
Mayor Bien-Willner closed the public hearing. 
 
Attorney Douglas Jorden spoke on behalf of the applicant.  He requested a four-week continuance to 
work with the neighbors to address concerns.  
 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Moore, seconded by Council Member Stanton, to Continue 
the Public Hearing on Paradise Valley Medical Plaza Intermediate Special Use Permit request 
(SUP-18-10) to March 14, 2019. The motion carried by the following vote: 
 

 Aye: 6 -  Mayor Bien-Willner 
 Council Member Andeen 
 Council Member Dembow 
 Vice Mayor Moore 
 Council Member Stanton 
 Council Member Thomasson 
 
 Absent: 1 -  Council Member Pace 
 
 
12.  ACTION ITEMS 

 19-035 Consideration of a Statement of Direction Extension for Mountain  

 View Medical Center 10555 N Tatum Boulevard 

 
Senior Planner Paul Michaud presented a joint request from the Planning Commission and Mountain 
View Medical Center to extend the Commission’s deadline in the Statement of Direction to review and 
make a recommendation on the Special Use Permit Amendment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Moore, seconded by Council Member Dembow, to approve 
the requested extension for Planning Commission action on the Mountain View Medical Plaza 
Special Use Permit application to April 16, 2019. The motion carried by the following vote: 

 Aye: 6 -  Mayor Bien-Willner 
 Council Member Andeen 
 Council Member Dembow 
 Vice Mayor Moore 
 Council Member Stanton 
 Council Member Thomasson 
 
 Absent: 1 -  Council Member Pace 



































TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 

5. RECONVENE FOR REGULAR MEETING 

Mayor Bien-Willner reconvened the meeting at 6:07 PM. 

6. ROLL CALL 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT 
Mayor Jerry Bien-Willner 
Council Member Ellen Andeen 
Vice Mayor Scott Moore 
Council Member Julie Pace 
Council Member Mark Stanton 
Council Member Anna Thomasson 

Council Member Paul Dembow was not present 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 
Town Attorney Andrew Miller 
Deputy Town Manager Dawn Marie Buckland 
Town Clerk Duncan Miller 
Lieutenant Michael Cole 
Town Engineer Paul Mood 
Community Development Director Jeremy Knapp 
Chief Financial Officer Douglas Allen 
Senior Planner Paul Michaud 
Chief Information Officer Steven Brunasso 

7. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE* 

Paradise Valley Police Dispatchers led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

8. PRESENTATIONS 

April11,2019 

19-163 Recognition of Paradise Valley Police Communication Specialists 

Mayor Bien-Willner and the Town Council recognized Paradise Valley Police Dispatchers on the 
occasion of the National Public Safety Telecommunicator's Week. 

9. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

There were no public comments. 

10. CONSENT AGENDA 

Deputy Town Manager Dawn Marie Buckland summarized the items on the Consent Agenda. Mayor 
Bien-Willner removed items 19-155 and 19-156 for separate discussion. 

A motion was made by Vice Mayor Moore, seconded by Council Member Thomasson, to 
approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of items 19-155 and 19-156. The motion carried 
by the following vote: 



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 

Aye: 6 - Mayor Bien-Willner 
Council Member Andeen 
Vice Mayor Moore 
Council Member Pace 
Council Member Stanton 
Council Member Thomasson 

Absent: 1 - Council Member Dembow 

19-157 

19-155 

Minutes of Town Council Meeting March 28, 2019 

Approval of Planning Commission Chair 

April 11, 2019 

Recommendation.·Approve Jonathan Wainwright to serve a one-year term as Chair of the 

Planning Commission. 

Mayor Bien-Willner thanked outgoing Planning Commission Chair Daran Wastchak and congratulated 
and thanked Jonathan Wainwright and Eric Leibsohn for their service. 

A motion was made by Council Member Pace, seconded by Vice Mayor Moore, to approve 
Jonathan Wainwright to serve a one-year term as Chair of the Planning Commission. The 
motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 6 - Mayor Bien-Willner 
Council Member Andeen 
Vice Mayor Moore 
Council Member Pace 
Council Member Stanton 
Council Member Thomasson 

Absent: 1 - Council Member Dembow 

19-156 Approval of Board of Adjustment Chair 

Recommendation:Approve Eric Leibsohn to serve a one-year term as Chair of the Board of 

Adjustment. 

A motion was made by Council Member Pace, seconded by Vice Mayor Moore, to approve Eric 
Leibsohn to serve a one-year term as Chair of the Board of Adjustment. The motion failed by the 
following vote: 

Aye: 6 - Mayor Bien-Willner 
Council Member Andeen 
Vice Mayor Moore 
Council Member Pace 
Council Member Stanton 
Council Member Thomasson 

Absent: 1 - Council Member Dembow 



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES April11,2019 

19-150 

Recommendation: 

Consideration of a Statement of Direction Extension for Mountain 

View Medical Center 10555 N Tatum Boulevard (SUP-18-12) 
Approve the requested Statement of Direction extension for Mountain 
View 

11. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

19-164 Approval of Ordinance No. 2019-04; Amendments to the Town 

Zoning Ordinance, Article XI, regarding Changes to the Process 
for Approval of Managerial Amendments 

Town Attorney Andrew Miller summarized Ordinance Number 2019-04. He stated that the Planning 
Commission reviewed the draft ordinance referred by the Council. The Commission did not make any 
amendments to the draft. 

Planning Commission Chair Jonathan Wainwright reported on the Commission's recommendation for 
approval. 

Mayor Bien-Willner opened the public hearing. There were no public comments. 
Mayor Bien-Willner closed the public hearing. 

A motion was made by Council Member Pace, seconded by Council Member Stanton, to Adopt 
Ordinance Number 2019-04 The motion carried by the following vote: 

Aye: 6 - Mayor Bien-Willner 
Council Member Andeen 
Vice Mayor Moore 
Council Member Pace 
Council Member Stanton 
Council Member Thomasson 

Absent: 1 - Council Member Dembow . 

12. ACTION ITEMS 

There were no Action Items. 

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Deputy Town Manager Buckland summarized the future agenda schedule. There were no requests to 
add items. 



 
 

 
 

 
 
















	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11
	12
	13
	14
	15



